
1 
Active Minds Changing Lives 

Western Washington University 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda 
August 23, 24, 2018 

THURSDAY, August 23, 2018 
Location: The Pavilion at Maritime Heritage Park 

500 West Holly Street, Bellingham 
Time:  3:00 p.m. 

1. CALL TO ORDER, APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
3:00 – 3:05

a. Board of Trustees Meeting, June, 14, 15, 2018

2. INTRODUCTIONS
3:05 – 3:15

a. Resolution No. 2018-02 Welcoming Student Trustee Citlaly Ramirez

3. BELLINGHAM PARKS AND RECREATION AT THE WATERFRONT
3:15 – 3:30 Leslie Bryson, Director, Bellingham Parks and Recreation 

FRIDAY, August 24, 2018 
Location: OM 340 
Time: 8:00 a.m.  

4. CALL TO ORDER
8:00 – 8:01

5. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD
8:01 – 8:10

6. INTRODUCTIONS
8:10 – 8:20

a. L.K. Langley, LGBTQ+ Director
b. Associate Students Board of Directors

7. BOARD CHAIR REPORT
8:20– 8:40

a. Words from the Chair
b. Resolution No. 2018-03 Recognizing the Service of Trustee Betti Fujikado

8. UNIVERSITY PRESIDENT REPORT
8:40 – 8:50



2 
Active Minds Changing Lives 

9. ASSOCIATED STUDENTS REPORT 
8:50– 8:55  
 

10. FACULTY SENATE REPORT 
8:55 – 9:00 
 

DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
11. INTERCOLLEGIATE ATHLETICS AT WESTERN  

9:00 – 10:00  Presentation: Steven Card, Director, Western Washington University Athletics 
     Bruce Larson, Faculty Athletic Representative 
     Carmen Dolfo, Women’s Basketball Coach  

BREAK – 10 Minutes 
 
ACTION ITEMS 
 
12. CONSENT ITEMS 

10:10 – 10:15  
a. Approval of Summer Quarter Degrees 
b. Construction Contract for Elevator Preservation and ADA Upgrades, PW729 

 
13. APPROVAL OF STATE OPERATING BUDGET REQUEST FOR BIENNIUM 2019-21 

10:15 – 10:45 Presentation:  Sabah Randhawa, President 
Richard Van Den Hul, Vice President, Business and Financial Affairs 
Linda Teater, Director, Budget Office 

   
REPORTS 
 
14. FINANCE, AUDIT, AND ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE REPORT 

10:45 – 11:00 Presentation: John Meyer, Chair, Finance, Audit & Enterprise Risk Mgmt. Committee 
 

15. OPEN PUBLIC MEETINGS ACT OVERVIEW 
11:00 – 11:30 Presentation:  Rob Olson, Assistant Attorney General 
 

16. INFORMATION ITEMS 
11:30 – 11:40 

a. Academic Reports 
b. Annual & Quarterly Grant Report 
c. Admissions and Enrollment Report 
d. University Advancement Report 
e. Capital Program Report 
f. University Relations and Marketing Report 

 
17. EXECUTIVE SESSION MAY BE HELD TO DISCUSS PERSONNEL ISSUES AS AUTHORIZED IN RCW 

42.30.110(1) 
 

18. DATE FOR NEXT REGULAR MEETING:  October 11, 12, 2018 
 
19. ADJOURNMENT  



 

1. CALL TO ORDER 



WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
ITEM SUBMITTED TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Members of the Board of Trustees 

President Sabah Randhawa 

August 23, 2018 

SUBJECT: Approval of the Minutes 

PURPOSE: Action Items 

Purpose of Submittal: 

Approval of the Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes. 

Proposed Motion: 

MOVED, that the Board of Trustees of Western Washington University, upon the 
recommendation of the president, approve the following minutes: 

 Approval of the Minutes of the Board of Trustees Meeting, June 14 & 15, 2018

Supporting Information:   

Minutes of June 14 & 15, 2018 



  DRAFT Minutes June 14, 2018 
 

Western Washington University 
Board of Trustees 
Meeting Minutes 

Thursday, June 14, 2018 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

Board Chair Sue Sharpe called the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Western 
Washington University to order at 3:04 pm in the Board Room, Old Main 340, in Bellingham, 
WA. 

Board of Trustees 

Sue Sharpe, Chair 
Earl Overstreet, Vice Chair 
John Meyer, Secretary 
Betti Fujikado 
Chase Franklin 
Trista Truemper 
Mo West  
Karen Lee - Absent 

 
Western Washington University 
      Sabah Randhawa, President  
      Brent Carbajal, Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs 
 Richard Van Den Hul, Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs 
 Stephanie Bowers, Vice President for University Advancement  
 Melynda Huskey, Vice President for Enrollment and Student Services 
 Donna Gibbs, Vice President for University Relations and Marketing 
 Allison Giffen, Faculty Senate President 
 Simrun Chhabra, Associated Students President 
 Paul Cocke, Director of University Communications 
 Paul Dunn, Senior Executive Assistant to the President 
 Barbara Sandoval, Assistant to the President and Secretary to the Board of Trustees 

Rayne Rambo, Assistant Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
 

 
2. UNIVERSITY MARKETING AND BRANDING 

 
Donna Gibbs, Vice President for University Relations and Marketing provided the board with an 
overview on university marketing and branding.  Gibbs noted that there is increasing 
competition for faculty and resources and that smart branding and marketing can set Western 
apart from other state institutions. 

Gibbs reported that during winter and spring quarters, marketing and communications 
professionals in Admissions, University Advancement, the Alumni Office, Extended Education 
University Relations and Marketing, and faculty in the College of Business and Economics 
worked with the Seattle advertising and branding agency, DNA, to define a unified brand 



  DRAFT Minutes June 14, 2018 
 

positioning statement for Western.  Gibbs added that this statement will guide more coordinated 
marketing efforts targeted to prospective students and their families.  She also noted that it will 
become the basis for more sustained and consistent brand advertising efforts statewide. 

Gibbs explained that the competitive environment necessitates that Western become more 
proactive in marketing efforts that will build consistent messaging that speaks to historically 
underrepresented populations.  She added that expanding efforts with more consistent 
messaging to alumni, state-wide private industry and legislative audiences will help align and 
support Western’s mission. 

Gibbs provided a summary of the work that has been completed by the Brand Council, a 
collective of Western’s marketing professionals, who prioritized their work aligns and supports 
Western’s mission, vision, value statement and the strategic plan.  She noted there are three 
themes that became clear: independent spirit, close collaboration, and activism.  Gibbs 
explained that the Brand Council also completed work on a Brand Promise and Value 
Proposition that together form the foundation for the in-market messaging that will express the 
brand to Western’s external audience.  She added that Brand Attributes, the qualities that 
should always be associated with the Western brand, are derived from the overlap between 
Western’s values and Western’s intended target audience.  Western’s Brand Attributes include; 
academic distinction, forward thinking, refreshingly original, and versatile and collaborative.   

Gibbs concluded her presentation with the newly created Positioning Statement for Western that 
defines and guides the Western brand and becomes the foundation for the experience Western 
delivers for our current and future students, parents, faculty and anyone else who interacts with 
Western.  The defined Positioning Statement is, “A collaborative of independent minds creating 
a better future”. 

Trustee Sharpe inquired about next steps in the marketing and branding process.  Gibbs 
responded by articulating next steps after further review and refinement that will include; an 
anthem video, creative executions and targeted efforts in the Seattle and Everett area, and 
working in conjunction with the Admissions Office to integrate these materials into the “look 
book” provided to high school juniors and seniors.  She added that the work thus far has been 
shared and vetted by the Alumni and Foundation Boards, students and faculty, and their input 
and feedback was represented in the final product. 

 

3. WATERFRONT EXPANSION UPDATE 

Donna Gibbs, Vice President for University Relations and Marketing introduced Rob Fix, 
Executive Director for the Port of Bellingham, who provided an update on the continued 
conversation of Western’s presence on the Bellingham Waterfront.  Fix provided the board with 
the progress of the projects currently underway at the waterfront including Western’s property, 
Western Crossing.  Fix added that there is momentum within the city of Bellingham to move 
toward a technologically advanced economy and moving away from older industrial economy.   

 

Donna Gibbs, Vice President for Relations and Marketing, provided the board with an update on 
the collaborative efforts to explore the future of Western on the waterfront. The Ideation Group 
which currently includes faculty and staff representation from Business and Sustainability, 



  DRAFT Minutes June 14, 2018 
 

University Relations and Marketing, College of Science and Engineering, Chemistry, Scientific 
Technical Services, Biology Department, Interdisciplinary Entrepreneurship in Action, (IDEA), 
Small Business Development Center, Institute for Energy Studies, Environmental Studies, and 
Sustainability Studies. She noted that this group will be expanding in the fall to include more 
campus groups to explore all possible opportunities.  Gibbs added that the Ideation Group also 
engaged the Entrepreneurship and Innovation Studies program which consists of ninety 
students to formulate their own prototype projects that can be shared with the campus 
community. 

Gibbs highlighted the expectation the Port of Bellingham has expressed for Western’s presence 
on the waterfront.  She noted that Western is seeking a presence that supports the economic 
development of Whatcom County and the City of Bellingham through innovative economy 
enterprises. She added this will create attractive jobs for the future and strengthen the tie 
between local jobs and resources that will create a vibrant and welcoming space for the 
community.  Gibbs stated that Washington State leads the nation in energy efficiency jobs with 
substantial growth in leadership position and design capacities and there is great economic 
opportunity in clean, efficient energy concepts. She concluded that the Ideation Group will 
continue to define the scope of the waterfront project and will reach out to strategic industrial 
and community partners to build a success presence of Western on the waterfront. 

 

4. EXECUTIVE SESSION 

At 4:49 p.m. Chair Sharpe announced that the Board would convene in Executive Session for 
approximately 30 minutes to discuss a personnel matter as authorized in RCW 42.30.110 
(1)(g)&(i). 
 

The meeting adjourned at 5:35 p.m.  

 



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

Western Washington University 
Board of Trustees 
Meeting Minutes 

Friday, June 15, 2018 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

Board Chair Sue Sharpe called the regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Western 
Washington University to order at 3:08 pm in the Board Room, Old Main 340, in Bellingham, 
WA. 

Board of Trustees 

Sue Sharpe, Chair 
Earl Overstreet, Vice Chair 
John Meyer, Secretary 
Betti Fujikado 
Chase Franklin 
Trista Truemper 
Mo West  
Karen Lee – absent 
 

 
Western Washington University 
      Sabah Randhawa, President  
      Brent Carbajal, Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs 
 Richard Van Den Hul, Vice President for Business and Financial Affairs 
 Stephanie Bowers, Vice President for University Advancement  
 Melynda Huskey, Vice President for Enrollment and Student Services 
 Donna Gibbs, Vice President for University Relations and Marketing 
 Allison Giffen, Faculty Senate President 
 Simrun Chhabra, Associated Students President 
 Paul Cocke, Director of University Communications 
 Paul Dunn, Executive Assistant to the President 
 Barbara Sandoval, Assistant to the President and Secretary to the Board of Trustees 

Rayne Rambo, Assistant Secretary to the Board of Trustees 
 

 
5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
MOTION 08-01-2018 Trustee Meyer moved that the Board of Trustees of Western  
    Washington University, upon the recommendation of the   
    President, approve the following minutes: 

• Board of Trustees Meeting, April 12 & 13, 2018 
 

The motion passed. 
 



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT  

As per Amended RCW 28B.35.110, the Board of Trustees provided time for public comment. 
There were no requests for public comment. 
 

7. RECOGNITIONS 

Tom Moore, Director of the Western Washington Fellowship Office, gave a brief introduction of 
the award programs and introduced the student award winners. Moore stated that Western 
students have received a number of national awards this year. 
 

WWU Student Award Winners 

Fulbright Hollings (NOAA) Gilman Freeman - 
ASIA 

• Kimberly 
Christenson 

• Cassidy Barlett 
• Celeste Hufford 
• Erika Bro 
• Maria Jose 

Palacios 
Figueroa 

• Delaney Adams 
• Laura Anthony 
• Risa Askerooth 
• Bobbi Bevacqua 

• Simone Hansen 
• Anton Ziska 
• Tracy Melville 
• Sebastian Zgirski 
• Rachael Beebe 
• Emmalene Madsen 
• Alicia Prokopenko 
• Tori Wood 
• Angelica Sanchez 
• Megan Sokol 
• Zoe Buchli 
• Jasmine Medina-

Perez 

• Alicia 
Prokopenko 

• Emmalene 
Madsen 

 

 

 

8. BOARD CHAIR REPORT 

Trustee Mo West led the trustees in recognizing the outstanding and passionate work of Trustee 
Trista Truemper over the past year.  West noted Trustee Truemper’s dedication to the position 
and her work capturing and representing the student voice and experience.  West added that 
her work as a trustee has brought a new understanding to the challenges of graduate and 
transfer students and highlighted her work bring attention to access and affordability for under-
represented students.  All wished her well and congratulated Trustee Truemper on her 
graduation from Western’s MBA program. 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-01 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF  
WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 

RECOGNIZING THE SERVICE OF BOARD MEMBER 

 TRISTA TRUEMPER 
 
WHEREAS, TRISTA TRUEMPER of Bellingham, Washington has served as a member of the Western 
Washington University Board of Trustees from July 1, 2017 – June 30, 2018; and 



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

 
WHEREAS, TRISTA TRUEMPER has the distinction of being the twentieth student appointed by the 
Governor to the Board of Trustees of Western Washington University; and 
 
WHEREAS, TRISTA TRUEMPER brought to her appointment as a trustee dedication to the campus 
community through her work with Western’s Graduate School to help launch the Graduate Student Advisory 
Council; as the Community Outreach and Engagement intern with Western’s Extended Education Programs; 
and as a member of the Faculty Senate Extended Education Committee; and 

 
WHEREAS, TRISTA TRUEMPER has contributed her time, commitment and valuable insight to the 
governance of University at considerable personal sacrifice, while pursuing a Master of Business 
Administration degree, after already earning a bachelor’s degree from Western Washington University in 
Sociology; and 
 
WHEREAS, TRISTA TRUEMPER contributed to the increased stature and the future potential of Western 
Washington University through her participation in numerous policy discussions and decisions affecting the 
University; and 

 
WHEREAS, TRISTA TRUEMPER has served with distinction this past year with intelligence, wisdom, 
compassion and concern for the best interests of the entire Western community; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Trustees of Western Washington University that 
TRISTA TRUEMPER be and is hereby honored for outstanding service and dedication to the University and 
is extended the gratitude and best wishes of the entire University community. 

 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Board of Trustees of Western Washington University at its regular 
meeting on June 15, 2018. 
 

MOTION 08-02-2018   Trustee West moved that the Board of Trustees approve 
     Resolution 2018-02 Recognizing the Service of Board                       
     Member Trista Truemper 
The motion passed. 
 
 
9. UNIVERSITY PRESIDENT’S REPORT 

President Randhawa shared his observations from the past academic year.  He acknowledged 
the completion of the strategic plan and thanked everyone that participated on the committee 
and the campus community for its completion.  President Randhawa noted the progress on 
increasing international student enrollment with Study Group and meeting enrollment targets, 
particularly for students of color. He reported that the supplemental budget process was 
successful in developing the decision packages for the next biennium that will come forward for 
presentation in the upcoming legislative session.  

President Randhawa detailed important work for the upcoming academic year that included, 
advocating for the interdisciplinary science building, completion of the business plan, the 
Peninsulas expansion feasibility study, and completing the appointments for the LGBTQ 
Director and the Tribal Liaison position.   



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

Randhawa thanked Allison Giffen for her work as Faculty Senate President and the work of the 
Faculty Senate. He also thanked Simrun Chhabra, Associated Students President and the 
Associated Student board for their work and collaboration on Western’s priorities. 

President Randhawa acknowledged Dr. Catharine R. Stimpson, who, upon board approval, will 
receive an Honorary Doctorate Degree at the Spring Commencement ceremony.  He added that 
Stimpson is a professor of English and Dean Emerita of the Graduate School of Arts and 
Science at New York University and will be awarded the degrees Doctorate of Humane Letters. 

Randhawa closed his report by acknowledging former student trustee, Abigail Ramos, who was 
accepted to law school at New York University in New York, New York. 

 

10. FACULTY SENATE REPORT 

Allison Giffen, Faculty Senate President, expressed her thanks to the board for a productive 
academic year and that it was a pleasure and a privilege to serve as Faculty Senate President.  
She noted that McNeel Jantzen will be the incoming Faculty Senate President.  She added that 
the Faculty Senate will continue to work on shared governance, strengthening faculty voices 
and effective committee restructuring. 

The board thanked Giffen for her service and for a successful and productive year. 

 

11. ASSOCIATED STUDENTS REPORT 

Simrun Chhabra, Associated Students President, reported that for the first time, undocumented 
students travelled to Washington D.C. to lobby on their own behalf and share their experiences 
with legislators.  Chhabra provide an update of the Associated Students constitution that will 
coincide with the reconstructing of the Associated Students Board to strengthen the 
organization.  She also noted that students approved a resolution to provide a smoke free 
campus with a two year implementation plan which passed the Associated Student board and 
will move forward for continued approvals.  She closed with an update on the Associated 
Students elections process that was completed and the incoming Associated Students 
President, Millka Solomon will be introduced at the August meeting of the Board of Trustees. 

The trustees thanked Chhabra for her service and that her input over the past year has been 
appreciated and invaluable. 

 

12. BOARD GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE REPORT 

Trustee Franklin provided an update on the work of the Governance Committee that includes 
two new committees, the Student Success Committee that will be chaired by Trustee West and 
the Executive Committee that will be chaired by Board Chair, Trustee Overstreet.  Franklin 
noted that the Executive Committee’s function will expand the capabilities of the board chair, 
ensure the integrity of the board, enhance the board’s performance and will facilitate the 
president’s annual reviews. Franklin also reported that the final changes made to the Board of 
Trustees Rules of Operation will be brought for approval in the current session. 



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

13. BOARD FINANCE, AUDIT AND ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
REPORT 

Trustee Overstreet provided an update of the work of the Finance, Audit, and Enterprise Risk 
Management Committee (FARM).  Overstreet noted that Trustee Meyer will chair the committee 
and he welcomed Trustee Sharpe as a new committee member.  Overstreet noted that Antonia 
Allen, Director, Office of the Internal Auditor provided an overview of the draft FY19 annual audit 
plan, announced her appointment as the University Ethics Officer, and provided options for the 
committee’s self-assessment tool.  Overstreet added that the committee received the semi-
annual internal control report that lead to discussion regarding compliance with sensitive 
personal information and access to the information.  Overstreet stated that President Randhawa 
initiated discussion with suggestions for new committee agenda items for the upcoming year 
that include budget review, university reserve, financial, fiscal infrastructure and potentially 
adding a financial resource professional that would be permitted by the new FARM Charter. 

 

14. ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM 

Trustee Overstreet provided an overview of the Enterprise Rick Management (ERM) Program.  
He noted that ERM is a discipline based on the realization that large, complex intuitions perform 
valuable missions that require a more structured and intentional approach to ensure success.  
He noted that it is important to realize that ERM is not intended to avoid or eliminate risk, but to 
ensure better decision making, have fewer surprises, and faster responses to circumstances 
that can negatively affect Western’s mission.  Overstreet stated that this is done by identifying, 
assessing, monitoring and responding to enterprise risks.  He added that with the emergence of 
the strategic plan, mission critical activities will follow and ERM will provide tools to be more 
effective with new programs and plans. 

Paul Mueller, Director, Risk, Compliance and Policy Services presented the outline of the draft 
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) program to the Board to gather additional input for the draft 
ERM Framework.  Mueller noted that the ERM Planning Committee had the following high level 
objectives when creating the framework; recognize best practices in higher education, be simple 
and pragmatic, tie to institutional mission and strategic plan, engage Western’s Board of 
Trustees, Executives, and division/academic leadership in drafting the ERM Framework, 
leverage and align with existing and related processes, such as SCOT Assessments, Internal 
Audit surveys and compliance surveys.   

Mueller concluded the presentation by outlining the plan for the implementation of ERM at 
Western.  He noted that ERM requires a commitment from the University’s Board of Trustees, 
President, and Executive Leadership to foster an environment that will encourage risk-informed 
decision making within the University’s culture and practices.  He said that key elements of 
implementation include integrating ERM into strategic planning and the budget process, 
applying it to emerging and strategic initiatives and continued monitoring throughout the 
university that will begin in September 2018. 

Trustee Sharpe announced a 10 minute break @ 10:33.  The board reconvened @ 10:45 am 
 

 



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

15. BOARD GOVERNANCE – APPROVAL OF THE BOARD RULES OF OPERATION 
REVISIONS 

Trustee Franklin presented the motion to approve the revised Rule of Operation for the board 
Governance Committee.  He noted that the Governance Committee, as part of its oversight 
responsibilities, undertook a comprehensive review of the Board’s Rules of Operation.  For 
review and guidance, the Governance Committee consulted with President Randhawa and 
Kerena Higgins, Assistant Attorney General.   

MOTION 08-03-2018  Trustee Franklin moved that the Board of Trustees of Western  
    Washington University, upon recommendation of the Board of  
    Trustees Governance Committee, approve the revised Rules of  
    Operation. 

The motion passed. 

 

16. CONSENT ITEMS 

Trustee Sharpe introduced the consent items brought before the board for approval. 

 

MOTION 08-04-2018  Trustee Truemper moved that the Board of Trustees of Western  
    Washington University, upon recommendation of the president,  
    approve the following consent items: 

• Approval of Spring Quarter Degrees 
• Construction Contract for disAbility Resources for Students and Veteran Services 

PW719A 
• Consultant Contract for Design Services and Construction Administration for 

Sciences Building Addition, PW733 
• Approval of Honorary Degree 

     

The motions passed. 

President Randhawa requested a change in the agenda due to faculty that would be presenting 
for the next regularly scheduled agenda item. 

 

17. RULE MAKING 

Melynda Huskey, Vice President for Enrollment and Student Services provided an overview of 
related revisions to WWU’s WAC that the board has reviewed at previous meetings.  She noted 
that this will be the final approval for the implementation of the WAC 516-21-220 Weapons and 
Destructive Devices and WAC 516-60-010 Waivers of Tuition and Fees in order to keep the 
University’s WAC rules accurate and up-to-date.  Also for approval of the Board the adoption of 
new chapter 516-35 WAC and amendments to existing chapter 516-36 WAC in order to 
preserve the integrity of Western Washington University’s educational mission, to protect the 



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

health, safety and welfare of students, faculty and staff and to preserve its strong commitment to 
freedom of expression. 

 

MOTION 08-04-2018  Trustee Overstreet moved that the Board of Trustees of Western  
    Washington University, upon recommendation of the President,  
    approve the expedited rule change amendments to WAC   
    516-21-220 and WAC 516-60-010 as proposed in the   
    attached. 

 

The motion passed. 

 

MOTION 08-05-2018  Trustee Meyer moved the Board of Trustees of Western   
    Washington University, upon the recommendation of the   
    President, approve the adoption of the new chapter 516-35 WAC  
    Use of University Property – Freedom of Expression and   
    Assembly and approve the permanent rule change to chapter 516- 
    36 WAC Use of University Facilities – Scheduling as submitted. 

The motion passed. 

 

18. CONSIDERATION OF CONTRACT BETWEEN WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
AND THE UNITED FACULTY OF WESTERN WASHINGTON 

President Randhawa acknowledged the importance of a strong faculty contract as it ensures 
Western will attracting and retain outstanding faculty and that it sets the stage for advancing the 
goals of the university.  He introduced Brian Burton, Associate Vice Provost for Academic 
Affairs, Rich Brown, President, United Faculty of Western Washington (UFWW) and Professor, 
Fine and Performing Arts, and Matthew Roelofs, UFWW Bargaining Unit Lead and Professor, 
Business and Economics who provided a brief overview of the contract bargaining process. 

MOTION 08-05-2018  Trustee Fujikado moved that the Board of Trustees of Western  
    Washington University, upon recommendation of the President,  
    approve the revision in the Collective Bargaining Agreement with  
    the United Faculty of Western Washington 

    The Board of Trustees authorizes the President of his designee to  
    execute the agreement on behalf of the Board effective June 15,  
    2018, in keeping with the reserved authority in the Board of  
    Trustees Rules of Operation, Section 2/3(h). 

The motion passed. 

 

 



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

 

19. 2018-2019 OPERATING BUDGET AND RELATED MATTERS 

President Randhawa provided an overview of FY2018 Operating Budget items that require 
Board approval.  Randhawa presented budget items along with the capital budget that will set 
the stage for the second year in the biennium.  

Linda Teater, Director, Budget Office reported that the Legislature and Governor have passed 
and signed an appropriation bill.  Based on this approved bill and the FY 2019 Western 
Washington University recommended budget, the Board is requested to approve 2018-19 
Academic Year Tuition Fees.  Tuition fees included both the tuition operating fee and the capital 
building fee for each category of student. 

MOTION 08-06-2018  Trustee Meyer moved, that the 2018-2019 annual tuition operating 
    fee and capital budget fee rates for state-funded resident   
    undergraduate students be raised by 2.2%; and 

    Further moved, that the 2018-2019 annual tuition operating fee  
    and capital building fee rates for non-resident undergraduate  
    students be raised by 5.0%; and 

    Further moved, that the 2018-2019 annual tuition operating fee  
    and capital building fee rates for resident graduate, non-resident  
    graduate, resident MBA, and rates for resident and non-resident  
    students in the Audiology and Speech Pathology programs be  
    raised by 4.5%; and 

    Further moved, that the 2018-2019 annual tuition operating fee  
    and capital building fee rates for non-resident Masters in Business 
    Administration (MBA) students be raised by 30.6%. 

The motion passed. 

 

Melynda Huskey, Vice President for Enrollment and Student Services recommended the 
following mandatory student fee levels for 2018-2019 for approval, and to approve the 
recommended revenue distributions of the Services and Activities (general S&A) Fee for 
academic year 2018-2019 and summer 2018. 

MOTION 08-07-2018  Trustee Truemper moved, that the Board of Trustees of Western  
    Washington University, upon recommendation of the President  
    and various constituent review committee, approve the 2018-2019 
    mandatory student fee levels and distribution for the S&A Fee as  
    proposed in the attached documents for the following fees: 

     Services & Activities Fee (Proposed increases $7.10 per  
     quarter; 4.0% on the portion of the fee not pledged to  
     bonds per RCW 28B.15.069) 
     Student Recreation Fee (Proposed increase $4.05 per  
     quarter; 4.0%) 



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

     Student Health Services Fee (Proposed increase $7 per  
     quarter; 6.6%) 
     Student Technology Fee (No increase) 
     Non-Academic Building Fee (No increase) 
     Sustainable Action Fee (Proposed increase $2 per quarter; 
     28.6%) 
     Student Transportation Fee (No increase) 
     Legislative Action Fee (No increase) 
     Multicultural Services Fee (No increase) 
The motion passed.  
 
 
Brent Carbajal, Provost and Vice President for Academic Affairs requested approval of the 
2018-2019 Self-Sustaining Year Tuition Rates for each classification. 

MOTION 08-08-2018  Trustee West moved that the Board      
    of Trustees of Western Washington University, upon   
    recommendation of the President approve that the 2018-19 Self- 
    Sustaining Academic Year Tuition Rates be raised to the following 
    rates, Individual Course/Workshop $255 per credit,    
    Undergraduate Course/Workshop Online $255 per credit,   
    Undergraduate Degree Program Courses $295 per credit,   
    Graduate Degree Program Courses $350 per credit, and   
    Weekend MBA $757 per credit and  

    Further moved, that the Global Pathway Undergraduate Program  
    tuition rate be approved at a flat rate of $7267 per quarter and that 
    the Global Pathway MBA Program tuition rate be approved at a  
    flat rate of $9,333 per quarter. 

The motion passed. 

 

Linda Teater, Director, Budget Office requested Board approval of the 2018-2019 Annual State 
Operating Budget.  She noted that based on the conference committee budget passed by the 
Legislature on March 8, 2018 and signed by the Governor on March 27, 2018, the following 
motion be approved. 

MOTION 08-09-2018  Trustee Overstreet moved, that the Board of Trustees of Western  
    Washington University, upon recommendation of the President,  
    approve the 2018-2019 annual state operating budget of   
    $178,628,788 consisting of State Appropriations in the amount of  
    $84,256,000; WWU net tuition operating fee revenue of   
    $89,644,032; and administrative services assessment revenue of  
    $4,728,756; and 

    Further moved, that the Board of Trustees of Western Washington 
    University, upon the recommendation of the President, approve  
    the 2018-2019 intercollegiate athletics operating budget of   



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

    $6,068,657 consisting of tuition and fees in the amount of   
    $3,470,416 and self-sustaining and other revenue of $2,598,241;  
    and 

    Further moved, the Board of Trustees of Western Washington  
    University, upon the recommendation of the President, intends to  
    continue to use tuition and fees as it has in the past to fund  
    portion of the Athletics budget in addition to revenue generated by 
    the Athletics program. 

The motion passed. 

 

20. CAPITAL PLANNING 

Rick Benner, University Architect/Director, Facilities Development and Capital Budget provided 
the Board an overview of the 2019-2021 Capital Plan.  He noted the items that have changed 
since the last review in April, pertaining to the Science, Technology, Engineering and 
Mathematics (STEM) addition and renovation projects for a Sciences Building.  He added that 
moving forward the project has been split into three projects: project one includes the request 
for the interdisciplinary Science Building; project two is the renovation of the current 
Environmental Science building; project three is the opportunity to raise private funds for 
computer science programs and electrical engineering programs.  He noted that raising private 
funds allows Western to request state matching grant funds for the final STEM project which will 
promote growth in those areas. He concluded that the priorities are the same and have been 
reorganized to line up with the capital budget request schedule. 

MOTION 08-10-2018  Trustee Franklin moved that the Board of Trustees of Western  
    Washington University, upon the recommendation of the   
    President, approves the 2019-2029 Capital Budget Plan which  
    includes the 2019-2021 Capital Budget Request from State- 
    appropriated funding sources of $123,516,000. 

 

The motion passed. 

 

Melynda Huskey, Vice President for Enrollment and Student Services provided an update on 
Housing and Dining System Capital Plan.  She noted that in December of 2016 the Board 
received an update that provided information on the demand for additional private bedroom, 
apartment-style housing on campus.  She added that Housing and Dining was considering a 
200 bed apartment building just north of Buchanan Towers along South College Drive across 
from Harrington Field.  Huskey noted that the project was put on pause due to increasing cost 
estimates, to allow for additional enrollment planning, and to see the effect private housing 
development had on demand. 

Huskey reported that this past spring Enrollment and Student Services, Housing and Dining, 
and Business and Financial Affairs partnered to take up the question of new housing and to 
update the demand analysis.  She noted that there continues to be strong demand for additional 



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

housing on campus, particularly for single bedroom options with food preparation areas and 
living facilities.  She added that the demand has elevated with recent enrollment increases and 
is projected to continue to grow with increasing international students.   

Huskey concluded by noting that due to the strong demand projections, a 400 bed suite style 
building is being considered.  She added that the planning for the facility has begun with an 
RFQ process to select a design build team to assist with the building.  Preliminary construction 
plans would begin in summer of 2019 and construction completed and occupancy scheduled for 
fall 2021.  She added that at this point time this item is informational and is expected to come 
before the Board in October 2018 for approval of the design build contract. 

 

21. ELECTION OF BOARD OF TRUSTEE OFFICERS 

Trustee Sharpe nominated Board officers pursuant to the WWU Board of Trustees Rules of 
Operation, Section 5(.01) Officers and Terms.  This section in the Rules of Operation states that 
the Board will elect a chair, vice chair, and secretary for two-year terms. 

MOTION 08-10-2018  Trustees Fujikado moved that the Board of Trustees of Western  
    Washington University elect the new Board officers as nominated,  
    to be effective at the close of this meeting. 

• Earl Overstreet, Chair 
• Chase Franklin, Vice Chair 
• John Meyer, Secretary 

The motion passed. 

 

22. INFORMATION ITEMS 

 

a. Academic Reports 
Provost Carbajal provided a written report with an update on the status of the tenure-
track faculty searches undertaken during the 2017-18 academic year and followed by 
spreadsheets showing the status of the TT faculty searches per college and other 
interesting information about Western’s new faculty members 

 

b. Admissions and Enrollment Report 
Vice President Huskey provided a written report regarding the university’s general 
enrollment and admissions. 
 

c. University Advancement Report 
Vice President Bowers provided a written report on the University’s Alumni Relations 
and Western Foundation activities. 
 

d. Capital Program Report 
      Vice President Van Den Hul provided a written report on the University’s capital     

projects. 
 



  DRAFT Minutes June 15, 2018 
 

e. University Relations and Marketing Report 
Vice President Gibbs provided a written report documenting recent activities of 
University Relations and Marketing. 
 
 

 

23. PASSING THE GAVEL 

Chair Sue Sharpe officially passed the meeting gavel over to new Chair Earl Overstreet. 

 

24. DATES FOR NEXT REGUALR MEETING 

August 23 and 24, 2018 in Bellingham 

 

25. ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 12:21 p.m.  

 



WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
ITEM SUBMITTED TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE: 

Members of the Board of Trustees  

Earl Overstreet, Chair, Board of Trustees 

August 23, 2018 

SUBJECT: Introductions 

PURPOSE: Information Item 

Purpose of Submittal: 

Board Chair Earl Overstreet will introduced the 2018-19 student trustee to the Board of 
Trustees. 

• 2018-02 Welcoming Student Trustee Citlaly Ramirez



 
RESOLUTION NO. 2018-02 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF  

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
 

WELCOMING TRUSTEE  

CITLALY RAMIREZ 
 
WHEREAS, on July 1, 2018, Governor Jay Inslee appointed CITLALY RAMIREZ of 
Bellingham, Washington to serve a one-year term ending on June 30, 2019 on the Western 
Washington University Board of Trustees; and 
 
WHEREAS, CITLALY RAMIREZ is a student in good standing at Western Washington 
University pursuing a degree in Management Information Systems with minors in Marketing and 
Theater; and 

 
WHEREAS, CITLALY RAMIREZ brings to her appointment as a trustee dedication to the 
campus community through her work with the Western Washington University Foundation as a 
Student Ambassador and a Student Engagement manager; and 
 
WHEREAS, CITLALY RAMIREZ brings to her appointment as a trustee dedication to her 
community though participation with organizations such as Ready to Rise, and the Newman 
Center; and as an ambassador for the Washington State Opportunity Scholarship; and 

 
WHEREAS, CITLALY RAMIREZ was nominated by an Associated Students committee to 
serve as a student member of the Western Washington University’s Board of Trustees; and 
 
WHEREAS, CITLALY RAMIREZ has declared her commitment to serve as a member of the 
Western Washington University Board of Trustees;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of Western Washington 
University officially extends a warm welcome to CITLALY RAMIREZ as she begins her term 
on the Board. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED by the Board of Trustees of Western Washington University at its 
meeting on August 23, 2018. 
 
ATTEST: 
 

                    
   Earl W. Overstreet II, Chair                  John Meyer, Secretary 
 



WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY 
ITEM SUBMITTED TO THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

TO: Members of the Board of Trustees  

FROM: Leslie Bryson, Director, Bellingham Parks and Recreation 

DATE: August 23, 2018 

SUBJECT: Bellingham Parks and Recreation at the Waterfront 

PURPOSE: Information Item 

Purpose of Submittal: 

Leslie Bryson, Director, Bellingham Parks and Recreation will provide an overview to 
members of the Board, President Randhawa, and his staff on topics related to Bellingham 
Parks and Recreation’s projects planned for the waterfront. 



GRANARY AVE

BAY STREET

COMMERCIAL STREET

CORNWALL AVE

WESTERN CROSSING

W
 L

A
U

R
EL

 S
TR

EE
T

C
H

ES
TN

U
T 

ST
R

EE
T

SITE PLAN - OPTION A

Bellingham Waterfront
Bellingham, WA

D2 GROUPS, LLC

December 5, 2017





Bellingham Waterfront
Bellingham, WA

D2 GROUPS, LLC

December 5, 2017

GRANARY AVE

BAY STREET

COMMERCIAL STREET

CORNWALL AVE

WESTERN CROSSING

W
 L

A
U

R
EL

 S
TR

EE
T

C
H

ES
TN

U
T 

ST
R

EE
T

SITE PLAN - OPTION B




	00 Agenda August 23 24 2018 FINAL
	001 Call to Order
	01 Approval of Minutes
	01a 2018 06 14 Draft Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes
	01b 2018 06 15 Draft Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes
	RESOLUTION NO. 2018-01
	RECOGNIZING THE SERVICE OF BOARD MEMBER
	TRISTA TRUEMPER

	02 Introductions
	RESOLUTION NO. 2018-02
	WELCOMING TRUSTEE
	CITLALY RAMIREZ

	03 Bellingham Parks and Recreation at the Waterfront
	03 Bellingham Parks and Recreation atthe Waterfront
	03 Bellingham Plans_12.05.2017_Compressed 1


